

Minutes of the Public Board
Held on 25 November 2021 09.30
Via MS Teams

	Chair:
	
	

	Charles Janczewski
	CJ
	UHB Chair

	Present:
	
	

	Ceri Phillips
	CP
	Vice Chair

	Stuart Walker
	SW
	Interim Chief Executive Officer

	Fiona Jenkins
	FJ
	Executive Director of Therapies & Healthcare Sciences

	Steve Curry
	SC
	Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer

	Abigail Harris
	AH
	Executive Director of Strategic Planning

	Fiona Kinghorn
	FK
	Executive Director of Public Health

	Mike Jones
	MJ
	Independent Member - Union

	Ruth Walker
	RW
	Executive Director of Nursing

	Catherine Phillips
	CP
	Executive Director of Finance

	Meriel Jenney
	MJ
	Interim Executive Medical Director

	Akmal Hanuk
	AH
	Independent Member for Community

	Susan Elsmore
	SE
	Independent Member for Local Authority

	Gary Baxter
	GB
	Independent Member for University

	Sara Moseley
	SM
	Independent Member for Third Sector

	John Union
	JU
	Independent Member for Finance

	Michael Imperato
	MI
	Independent Member for Legal

	Rhian Thomas 
	RT
	Independent Member - Capital and Estates

	In Attendance:
	
	

	Nicola Foreman
	NF
	Director of Corporate Governance

	Caroline Bird
	CB
	Interim Chief Operating Officer

	Ian Virgil
	IV
	Head of Internal Audit

	Lianne Morse
	LM
	Assistant Director of Workforce

	Sam Austin
	SA
	Deputy Chief Executive, Llamau

	David Thomas
	DT
	Director of Digital Health & Intelligence

	Keithley Wilkinson
	KW
	Equality Manager

	Observers:
	
	

	Victoria Daniel
	VD
	Infection Control Scientist

	Michael Pruski
	MP
	Clinical Scientist

	Gruffydd Pari
	GP
	Graduate Trainee Manager

	Caitlin Thomas
	CT
	Graduate Trainee Manager

	Debbie Roelvink
	DR
	EA to Chief Operating Officer

	Joanne Brandon
	JB
	Director of Communications

	Marcia Donovan
	MD
	Head of Corporate Governance

	Sarah Mohamed
	SM
	Corporate Governance Officer

	Secretariat:
	
	

	Nathan Saunders
	NS
	Senior Corporate Governance Officer

	Apologies:
	
	

	Lance Carver
	LC
	Director of Social Service, Vale of Glamorgan Council

	Rachel Gidman
	RG
	Executive Director of People and Culture.




	Item No
	Agenda Item
	Action

	UHB 21/11/001
	Welcome & Introductions

The University Health Board Chair (UHB Chair) welcomed all to the Board meeting in English and in Welsh. 

	

	UHB 21/11/002
	Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absences were noted.

	

	UHB 21/11/003
	Declarations of Interest

Sara Moseley declared an interest as a member of the General Medical Council (GMC).

[bookmark: _GoBack]Fiona Jenkins declared an interest in relation to her joint role as the interim Executive Director for Therapies Health Science for Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB.

Susan Elsmore declared an interest in relation to her role as the Cabinet Member for Social Care, Health and Well-being at Cardiff Council.

The Board resolved that:

a) Save for declarations of interest noted above, no further declarations of interest were noted. 

	

	UHB 21/11/004
	Minutes of the Board Meeting held on:
Public Board 30 September 2021

The minutes of the Board Meeting held on 30 September 2021 were reviewed for accuracy and matters arising.

The Board resolved that:

a) The minutes of the Public Board meeting held on 30 September 2021 were approved as a true and accurate record. 

	

	UHB 21/11/005
	Action Log 29th July 2021

It was noted that all actions on the Action Log were completed.

The Board resolved that:

a) The Action Log was received and noted. 

	

	UHB 21/11/006
	Patient Story

The Executive Nurse Director (END) informed the Board that the Patient Story was to consider the importance of equality and how patients can access services across Cardiff and Vale University Health Board.

Due to IT technical issues, the video was not shared with the Board.

The END advised members of the Board that the Patient Story video would be sent to them via email.


The Board resolved that:

a) The Patient Story was noted pending being viewed offline.

	

	UHB 21/11/007
	Chair’s Report and Chair’s Action taken since last meeting

The UHB Chair highlighted that the report included information regarding the key activities that had taken place since the last Board Meeting on the 30th September 2021.  

It was noted that the Hospital Sterilisation Decontamination Unit (HSDU) was an example of an area which was not always in the public eye, and the Chair highlighted the invaluable work carried out by the said unit and its response to Covid. 

The UHB Chair advised the Board that his report also included a number of Chairs’ Actions and the seals that were applied to documents. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The Chairs report was noted.
b) The Chair’s Actions undertaken during the period were approved.

	









	UHB 21/11/008
	Interim Chief Executive Report

The Interim Chief Executive Report was received.

The Interim Chief Executive (ICEO) advised the Board of the importance of the Transitional Care Unit at St Davids Hospital, the changes that were made to A1 Ward functionality at the University Hospital of Wales (UHW), and he acknowledged how important they were as a broader set of changes related to transformation within the Medicine Clinical Board. 

It was noted that within those works being taken forward by the Medicine Clinical Board, others included:

· The “Right Bed, First Time” worktstream.
· The collaborative working alongside Local Authority (LA) colleagues. 

It was noted that the changes being made within the Medicine Clinical Board were a key area of current clinical service provision and had been moving at pace to deliver transformation. 

The ICEO advised the Board that changes were planned within the Executive Team which included:

· Suzanne Rankin had been appointed as the new Chief Executive Officer of the Health Board with effect from 1 February 2022 and it was noted that she had been working very closely with the current Executive Team prior to her formally commencing her new role. 
· The Deputy Chief Executive Officer (DECO) would be leaving the Health Board in December 2021.
· The Deputy Chief Operating Officer had moved into the Interim Chief Operating Officer position.
· The current Interim Medical Director would continue in that role until the new CEO started and, potentially, a little after to ensure continuity. 

The ICEO advised the Board in relation to an update on a topic which was being discussed at a national level:

· How a National and Regional system could be delivered against the increasing demands in the Urgent Care System with a proposal being developed regarding  system resilience and escalation across Wales and specific regions. 
It was noted that it was “a work in progress” and had not yet been finalised. 

The ICEO advised the Board of ongoing discussions with Welsh Government (WG) regarding the delivery of Mental Health and Childrens’ Mental Health Services, and that a high quality report, which  provided strong assurance around those services, was provided to the Deputy Minister. 

The Independent Member – Third Sector (IMTS) asked if the urgent care issue identified in the Interim Chief Executive Report was being looked at Regionally or Nationally.

The ICEO responded that it was being considered on both points and that, Regionally and Nationally it was supported by the Chief Ambulance Services Commissioner and some phyisicans across Wales.

It was noted that the Health Board was meeting with neighbouring Health Boards and that relationships were strong.  The first “Executive to Executive” meeting would be had that same day.

The Vice Chair advised the Board that there was also ongoing national work relating to urgent Primary Care, in particular where some patients could be seen in an urgent Primary Care Centre led by one of the clusters in South Wales.

The Board resolved that:

a) The Interim Chief Executive’s report was noted.

	

	UHB 21/11/009
	Corona Virus Report.

The Corona Virus Report was recevied. 

The ICEO advised the Board that since the paper was prepared the Covid-19 pandemic had produced further changes and noted that the report could be taken as read.

It was noted that any questions Board Members may have could be directed to the relevant Executive lead.  

The Independent Member University (IMU) queried the level of hesitation over the booster vaccine and flu vaccinations. 

The Executive Director of Public Health (EDPH) responded that the booster vaccine was going very well, albeit there was a challenge with regards to the 39 – 49 years old age group. 

It was noted that there was also a three week delay with the flu vaccine and the Board was advised that an awareness raising communication would be published to target specific groups, such as those with underlying health issues.

The Independent member – Community (IMC) highlighted that there was a misunderstanding amongst the local community regarding the booster and noted that some people believed the booster was replacing the flu vaccine. 

He added that there was also some confusion regarding which vaccine type people would need to take. 

The EDPH responded that clarification was required in relation to that issue and it was confirmed that the Communications Team would assist with the communications work relating to that. 

The Independent Member – Capital and Estates (IMCE) noted that at previous Board meetings the logistical and resource benefits had been discusssed regarding the simultaneous delivery of the flu vaccine and the booster vaccine and asked for an update.

The EDPC responded that approximately 5,500 staff members had received their Covid and Flu vaccines. 

It was noted that flu vaccinations were given by other organisations, including Child Health, and that the bulk were administered by Primary Care who had ordered their flu vaccinations a year in advance.

The UHB Chair commended the content of the Corona Virus Report  and noted the considerable amount of work that was underway across the Health Board in order to deal with Covid and non-Covid services.

He added that the Health Board had delivered against the commitment to achieve 80% of pre-covid planned care activity at the end of Quarter 2 and noted whilst the aim remained to deliver 90% by the end of Quarter 4, it should be noted that current unscheduled care pressures made that more challenging.
  
The Board resolved that:

a)  The COVID 19 update report was noted.

	

	UHB 21/11/010
	RPB Winter Plan

The RPB Winter Plan was received. 

The Executive Director of Strategic Planning (EDSP) advised the Board that Welsh Government (WG) had published a Health and Social Care plan two months prior to the Board meeting.   She noted that it had already been decided, as a partner to the RPB, that it would be useful to articulate the Health Board’s actions for the Winter before WG had published its plan. 

The Deputy Chief Operating Officer (DCOO) noted that there had been no Summer respite and the workforce was very tired. 

It was noted that a unique set circumstances existed going into the Winter.

It was noted that the Health Board had been working closely with Local Authority colleagues, the Welsh Ambulance Service and the Third Sector.

The Independent Member – Local Authority (IMLC) advised the Board that during her time in Health and Social Care, it was the worst winter being faced and commended the Health and Care system for the collaborative joint working which had been provided to date. 

The DCOO advised the Board that the presentation being shared had been recevied by WG and it had set out the Health Board’s summary position and short-term mitigations for Winter. 

It was noted that Summer pressures included:

· Emergency Department (ED) presentations had returned to more than 90% of pre-Covid levels.
· Admissions were around the expected seasonal levels.
· Occupancy was increasing and was now above expected seasonal levels.

The DCOO commented that the reasons for the occupancy increase included:

· An increased number of ‘Medically Fit’ patients in hospitals.
· A reduced discharge rate from that medically fit list.
· A substantial increase in patients with more than 21 days length of stay, particualrly in the over 65 age group.
· Full package/homecase Community Resource Team (CRT) referral waits had lengthened. 

It was noted that a system wide response was required to tackle the pressures and the Board were advised of actions taken to date which had included:

· System actions
· Process actions
· Capacity actions.

The DCOO advised the Board of immediate next steps which were required and those included:

· System actions
· Joint working with the Local Authorities in connection with a recruitment model.
· Extension of the cluster MDT model.
· Use of a Population Cohort Analysis to compliment the MDT model – Interventions for high risk patients. 

· Process Actions
· Development of a Surgical Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) service.
· Dedicated Emergency Department support for avoiding high risk and frail elderly patient admissions
· Switch the Operational management leadership approach to site-based. 

· Capacity Actions
· Open 2 Transition Wards (40 beds).
· Admission avoidance through a Population Cohort approach (30 beds).
· Process improvement (20 beds).
· Expansion of Social Care capacity through intensified recruitment.

The DCOO advised the Board that the Population Cohort Analysis tool had been developed by the Information Team and Lightfoot and that it could identify high-risk population sub-groups.

It was noted that the modelling had identified:

· Population size
· Attendances
· Admissions
· Length of stay
· Occupany.

It was noted that a key part of managing patients’ care was through the development of an acute care plan. 


It was further noted that, in regard to Governance and Board oversight, Public Board sessions would be increased to once a month with a dedicated agenda item for Covid-19 and Unscheduled Care pressues. 

The IMTS asked if the Health Board was still at a point where it could open additional facilities given the staffing restraints raised. 

The DCOO responded that staffing was a challenge because staff were tired, they had not received any respite during the Summer, and recruitment was challenging.

She added that in terms of opening additional care capacity, alternative models had been considered. 

The IMTS noted that whilst the acute care plan looked at the whole medical pathway, the social care pathway had not been integrated into it. 

The DCOO responded that the presentation provided had only offered an example of the ongoing work and that social care colleagues would be consulted with in order to obtain all relevant information so that it could to be used “across the board”. 

The END reinforced the DCOO’s point and noted that Nurse staffing was a real challenge with over 400 vacancies.

The Independent Member University (IMU) queried a larger campaign, such as radio could be explored, in relation to publicising the Winter plan communication. 

The DCOO responded that they had worked with other public sector authorities, such as the Fire Service, to ensure that relevant communications were in place. 

The Board were advised  that various communication campaigns had been provided in small segments which could help to redirect patients including “the worried well” and noted that further discussions would take place in relation to larger scale campaigns which would require input from NHS Wales.

It was noted that a joint communication would be sent out shortly between the Welsh Ambulance Service, Vale of Glamorgan Council, Cardiff Council and the Health Board. 

The Independent Member – Legal advised the Board that he had been interested in the role of MDT clusters, in particular with regards to the discharge of patients, and asked how much of an impact such clusters could make.

The DCOO responded that the MDT cluster model could have a great impact, could translate into a reduction in terms of “bed days” and, more importantly, a better patient experience.  She commented further that the implementation of further MDT clusters was being undertaken, albeit the clusters were are different stages of the “roll out”.

The IMLC noted that the South West cluster had been doing phenomenal work in relation to social prescribing and noted that further consideration regarding a whole system approach would be required to improve patient experience.

The EDPH noted that wide spread communication was key and commented that it was important to ensure that such communications were worded and used appropriate language in order to reach all corners of the population.  

The Board resolved that:

a) The development of the Cardiff and Vale Integrated Winter Plan for 2021/22 and its evolving nature was noted.

	

	UHB 21/11/011
	Board Assurance Framework

The Board Assurance Framework was received.

The Director of Corporate Governance (DCG) advised the Board of the changes made to the Board Assurance Framework (BAF).

It was noted that the 10 risks to the Strategic Objectives were still the same which were:

· Workforce 
· Financial sustainability 
· Sustainable Primary and Community Care 
· Patient Safety 
· Sustainable Culture Change 
· Capital Assets 
· Inadequate Planned Care Capacity 
· Delivery of Annual Plan 
· Staff Wellbeing 
· Exacerbation of Health Inequalities in Cardiff and Vale.

It was noted that the risk in relation to Financial Sustainability had decreased from 15 to 10 due to the monies that had been received from WG for recovery. 

The DCG advised the Board that the risk appetitie had been added to the BAF to ensure that the Board, when considering decisions, were also considering the risk appetite.

The IMCE asked whether the workforce item was more acute in some areas compared to others. 

The Assistant Director of Workforce (ADW) responded that it would be covered in the Integrated Report but noted that there were greater vacancies being seen in some staff groups compared to others, with Nursing being the largest.

The Independent Member – Trade Union (IMTU) advised the Board that staff were getting “burnt out” and the greatest concern at the time was in relation to Occupational Health and the Well-being service. He asked what could be done to support those staff.

The ADW responded that there had been increased demands on the Occupational Health team and the Well-being service and noted that a temporary solution was in place, that was, using agency workers to bridge the gaps. 

The END advised the Board that the Charitable Funds Committee had supported the well-being agenda and that a report would be taken the next Charitable Funds Committee in December to seek continuation of the funding. 

The IMTS advised the Board that similar conversations in relation to staffing had taken place at previous Board meetings and asked if a better understanding of the issue could be provided.

The UHB Chair responded that a dedicated Board Development Session had been scheduled so that Board members could gain a better understanding of the staffing challenges.

The Board resolved that:

a) The 10 risks to the delivery of Strategic Objectives detailed on the attached BAF for September 2021 were approved; and

b) The continuing progress which had been made in relation to the roll out and delivery of effective risk management systems and processes at Cardiff and Vale UHB was noted. 

	

	UHB 21/11/012
	Integrated Performance Report

The Integrated Performance Report was received. 

Finance

The Executive Director of Finance (EDF) advised the Board that the reported financial position for the 6 months to the end of September 2021 was an operational surplus of £0.170million.  

It was noted that the underlying deficit was still a concern for the Health Board as well as delivery of the savings target for 2021/22. 

The UHB Chair advised the Board that the Finance Committee scrutinise the financial position on a monthly basis and offered that assurance to the Board. 


People and Culture

The ADW advised the Board that the Integrated Report showed an extremely challenging position going into Winter and that had been discussed earlier in the meeting.  

It was noted that the immediate priorities were workforce supply and the improvement of health and wellbeing for staff. 

It was noted that workforce demand was exceeding supply which had created a highly competitive market.  That had not been experienced for a number of years. 

It was noted that to support the competitive market, a Workforce Recruitment and Resourcing team had been established to attract high quality candidates with the right skills and experience. 

It was noted that a Workforce Hub had been established that oversaw all recruitment in relation to the recovery and redesign plan and the Winter plan, and to ensure good controls and assurance against that. 

It was noted that sickness absence was the highest it had been since the peak of the pandemic and currently stood at an overall 8%. 

It was noted that main reason for sickness absence was anxiety and stress. 

The ADW advised the Board that the “shaping our future workforce” model was being considered  to ensure the Health Board would be in a better staffing position next Winter.

The IMTU asked what the quality of the data was as a result of completed staff exit questionnaires. 

The ADW responded that there was a dedicated team reviewing the exit interview process because it had been identified that it was not working as well as it should have been.

It was noted that informed decisions could be made from the data but more work was required around the data at present.

The UHB Chair advised the Board that a People and Culture plan was being developed and would be brought to the Board in December. 

Quality & Safety

The END advised the Board that there had been an increase in 
C. difficile over the past few months which could be linked to antibiotic prescribing and a more detailed report could be taken to the Quality, Safety and Experience Committee, if required. 

It was noted that concerns raised had tripled compared to the previous year. 

It was noted that the increase reflected the higher number of enquiries that the Concerns Team had received as more people were requesting updates on their COVID-19 booster vaccinations.

The Interim Executive Medical Director (IEMD) advised the Board that it was “Antibiotic Awareness Week” and a very active campaign was ongoing to improve prescribing and to try and address issues proactively. 

Performance

The ICOO advised the Board that whilst pressures were being seen across the hospitals as detailed earlier in the meeting, it was important to note that the pressures were also being seen in Primary Care and, in particular, in GP practices. 

It was noted that the report stated that the headline performance of Mental Health services had deteriorated.  It could now be demonstrated through a number of actions across adult, children and young people’s mental health services, that improvements could be seen.

It was noted that in August 2021, the CAMHS service was booking patients onto the waiting list of 56 days and that now the waiting list had reduced to 27 days, and that during the same period for adults, the waiting list had reduced from 49 days to under 28 days.

The ICOO advised the Board that they would already be aware of the Recovery & Redesign portfolio and the 5 programmes of work relating to the same, which included:

· Unscheduled Care
· Diagnostics
· Planned Care
· Mental Health
· Primary Care

It was noted that the programmes were supported by key enablers, which were:

· Infrastructure 
· Workforce
· Digital
· Communications
· Finance

It was noted that in terms of the deliverable side of operations, 2 formats had been given:

· Being committed to delivering recovery of activity.
· Expanding Community eye care services and providing a different model of care for outpatients.

The IMLC asked, in relation to CAMHS, how was the Health Board performing in terms of the position of young people being admitted to adult wards.

The ICOO responded that the current “in-day” position was not available at that moment but agreed that young people had been admitted to adult wards and noted that it had been discussed with Ministers recently with regards to improving the patient experience within mental health services.

The IMTS asked about the planned care and noted that, within eye-care, most people had an allocated risk factor and two thirds of patients had been seen within target.  However, that meant one third of patients had not. She queried what harm could ensue if a patient did not have operation or waited a long time for the same.

The EDTHS responded that she chaired the National Eye Group and noted that planned care was a key focus of attention and that in relation to the definition of harm, at the next eye-care meeting a national definition would be agreed.

She added that the Health Board was doing better than other Health Boards in its planned care recovery and that a proposal  had been muted at the last planned eye-care group with regards to moving services into the community and that had resulted in patient waiting lists decreasing.

The Board resolved that:

a) The contents of the integrated report were noted.

	 

	UHB 21/11/013
	COVID 19 Public Inquiry

The COVID-19 Public Inquiry was received.
	
The DCG advised the Board that the report was presented to provide assurance regarding the ongoing work that had been undertaken in relation to the COVID-19 Public Inquiry.

It was noted that the Management Executives had been updated with the Public Inquiry associated work and that the current workload for the Inquiry was at an operational level with work having been undertaken by the Archivist who was employed in the Summer of 2021.

The DCG commented further that the Health Board had, to date, taken a very operational approach to the Covid-19 Inquiry and that it was not yet known whether the Public Inquiry would take the format of a UK only based Inquiry or whether there would be a separate Wales Inquiry.  

It was noted that a plan had been put into place which outlined 4 main questions which included: 

· What were the prevailing circumstances?
· What decisions were made?
· What evidence was available?
· What was the effect and consequences of the decision?


It was noted that the Board would need to discuss options for  legal representation and it was highlighted that the opportunity for those discussions would arise at the December Board development session. 


The Independent Member – Finance (IMF) asked if any thought had been given to the costs to date and additional resourcing.

The DCG responded that the work undertaken to date was covered by COVID-19 monies but noted that thought would be required regarding further funding/future costs as matters  progressed with the Public Inquiry.

The Board resolved that:

a) The approach taken to preparation for a Covid-19 Public Inquiry was discussed and approved; and 

b) The continuing progress being made in relation to preparation for a Covid-19 Public Inquiry was noted

	

	UHB 21/11/014
	Corporate Meeting Schedule

The Corporate Meeting Schedule was received. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The draft Corporate Meeting Schedule for 2022-23 was noted and approved. 

	

	UHB 21/11/015
	Welsh Language Annual Report

The Welsh Language Annual Report was received.

The Equality Manager (EM) advised the Board that since 30 May 2019, the Health Board had been subject to a Welsh Language Standards Compliance Notice set by the Welsh Language Commissioner.

It was noted that all Health Boards were being investigated and that, in relation to the Health Board, identified issues had included non-compliance for the websites, Covid-19 forms and also a letter that had been sent to a Welsh speaker.

It was noted that a number of investigations had been closed and that of the Health Board’s original 12 investigations, approximately 7 remained open.

It was noted that some Standards required more focus, such as staff recruitment and admission of patients, and that the Health Board’s Welsh Language officers had focused upon those priorities.

The ICEO advised the Board that accessing healthcare in the language of their choice provided benefits and noted that he was surprised how many Welsh Language Commissioner investigations had been received during his tenure as ICEO.

He asked if there was another way in which the Health Board  could work with the Welsh language Commissioner.

The EM responded that it was about getting things right and try to avoid treating Welsh Language as a compliance issue. 


The IMCE agreed and he asked what the short to medium term plans were.

The EM responded that there was currently no robust capacity which meant there was no medium term plan at present.

It was noted that there was a Welsh Language Officer who was working full time for Health Board.

The IMTS advised the Board that there were still fundamental things not happening, such as not answering the phone in Welsh at the frontline, and that the same should be addressed.

The UHB Chair advised the Board that the EM was leaving his role and thanked him for his hard work and dedication over the years.

The Board resolved that:

a) The ongoing Welsh Language compliance with the Welsh Language Standards across the Health Board was supported and noted.

	

	UHB 21/11/016
	Naming of CRI Chapel

The Naming of CRI Chapel was received.

The EDSP advised the Board that all information had been provided in the report.  She commented that integrated capital funding had been received which had enabled the Health Board to develop the Cardiff Royal Infirmary Chapel in partnership with Cardiff Council. 

It was noted that the Cardiff Third Sector Council had led on the engagement work with the local community and local stakeholder groups to consider and propose a recommended name. 

It was noted that the recommendation put forward for the name was “Capel I Bawb” which translated into “Chapel for Everyone”.

The UHB Chair advised the Board that one of the recommendations in the covering report was that the Strategy & Delivery Committee needed to recommend the proposed name to Board for approval.

The EDSP responded that the Strategy & Delivery Committee had met one week prior the Board meeting and had agreed that. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The outcome of the engagement exercise was noted.

b) Noting that the Strategy and Delivery Committee had agreed to recommend the proposed name to the Board for approval, the proposed name of “Capel I Bawb” in respect of the former chapel of the CRI was approved.

	

	UHB 21/11/017
	Sustainability Action Plan

The Sustainability Action Plan was received. 

The EDSP advised the Board that the climate emergency was one of the biggest challenges facing society across the world and that the Health Board had  a responsibility to take urgent action and step up actions to reduce activities that were harmful to the environment. 

It was noted that in January 2020, the Board followed the WG announcement and declared a climate emergency.

It was noted that updates had been provided on the actions that had been delivered in 2021/22. 

It was further noted that in March 2021, NHS Wales had released its Decarbonisation Strategic Delivery Plan and had set out an initial trajectory of carbon reduction for the Welsh NHS of 16% by 2025 and 34% by 2030.

Board Members also noted that the said Plan set out over 100 actions, many of which had been devolved to the Health Boards and Trusts to deliver. 

The EDSP advised the Board that most of the Executive Members had an action to contribute towards the delivery of the programme and noted that an overarching programme board would be set up and that the same would report into the Strategy and Delivery Committee. 

It was noted that work was ongoing with the Procurement team to consider how services, works and good could be procured with a greater benefit to the environment. 

It was noted that the current buildings within Health Board were not efficient and the Board was assured that that was a strong environmental theme in the programme business case for the Future Hospitals programme. 

The EDSP highlighted other key areas of work which included:

· Active transport. For example, Park & Ride. 

· Clinical services – For example, access to appointments via video, where appropriate. 

It was noted that the action plan should be commended and the EDSP highlighted that the commitment to zero carbon by 2030 would not happen without the specific actions described.

It was noted that the Health Board was seen to be one of the leading Health Boards in this field. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The proposed 21/22 Sustainability Action Plan was approved.

b) Further update reports regarding how the 21/22 Sustainability Action Plan was being delivered across the Health Board, would be brought back to Board via the Strategy and Delivery Committee..

	

	UHB 21/11/018
	RaTS Committee Terms of Reference

The Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee (RaTS) Terms of Reference were received.

The Board resolved that:

a) The changes to the Terms of Reference as highlighted in the report were approved.

	

	UHB 21/11/019
	Finance Committee Terms of Reference

The Finance Committee Terms of Reference were received.

The Board resolved that:

a) The changes to the Terms of Reference as highlighted in the report were approved.

	

	UHB 21/11/020
	Nurse Staffing Levels Report

The Nurse Staffing Levels Report was received.

The END advised the Board that Sections 25(A), 25(B) and 25(C) of the Nurse Staffing Levels (Wales) Act 2016 applied to acute medical and surgical wards, and, as of June 2021, to Paediatrics also.

It was noted that 25(A) of the Act applied to all other areas of the Health Board where the Act asked to provide an establishment that allowed staff to provide care to patients sensitively. 

It was noted that the Act was calculated on a set of principles provided by WG, Royal Colleges or standards set by professional networks. 

It was noted that in previous Board meetings challenges around mental health establishments had been identified.

The END advised the Board that the establishment had now been signed off and noted that a set of principles would be provided in the future for mental health and also health visiting.

The IMLC advised the Board the she had undertaken a patient safety walk around a mental health ward and was assured that everything had been up to full complement with good levels of compliance around areas such as annual appraisals and mandatory training. 

The END responded that the Act asks the Health Board to report on those points raised by the IMLC.

The Board resolved that:

a) The nursing establishments in compliance with requirements of the Nurse Staffing Levels (Wales) Act 2016 were approved.

	

	UHB 21/11/021
	Capital and Estates - Procurement & Governance

The Capital and Estates - Procurement & Governance report was received.

The EDF advised the Board that an exercise was undertaken as a result of breaches which were identified in relation to a contract.

It was noted that the report set out the following:

· Areas of legal and regulatory compliance in relation to NHS Wales Infrastructure Investments Guidance, the Health Boards Standing Financial Instructions, the Health Boards Scheme of Delegations and Earned Autonomy Framework and Procurement Law.

· An assessment of what happened and the areas of legal and regulatory compliance which were breached.

· The Recommendations to ensure that moving forward the same situation did not occur in Capital Schemes and Capital Expenditure

· An action plan to implement the recommendations.

The EDF advised the Board that it was clear from the exercise undertaken that the errors were systematic as well as not using the Procurement Team to its fullest. 

It was noted that the errors had been rectified and were subject to action plans with actions currently being implemented and/or having been delivered. 

It was noted that the implementation of those actions would be tracked by the Audit and Assurance Committee. 

The UHB Chair advised the Board that it was an important piece of work that had demonstrated how open, frank and honest the Health Board were and noted that it had been a quick investigation and the actions provided demonstrated effective governance.

The DCG advised the Board that the action plan would be delivered by the end of the year and noted that training for the Board Members would take place at the December Board Development session and also confirmed that the EDSP had advised the Strategy and Delivery Committee that each capital scheme over £200k now had a named Executive who oversaw the scheme concerned.

The EDF advised the Board that Audit Wales had been kept updated on the issues and had seen all relevant documents.

It was noted that Audit Wales would be relying on the work of the Internal Audit team and had advised the Health Board that they would not be progressing the matter any further. 

The IMF assured the Board that the issues had been fully debated at the Audit and Assurance Committee with Audit Wales having been in attendance.

The Board resolved that:

a) the report and recommendations which were approved by the Board in Private in September 2021 in relation to Capital Schemes and Expenditure – Procurement and Governance, were noted.

b) The Action Plan for Phase I &II and timescales to deliver the same as set out in Appendix 3 with the actions being tracked through the usual mechanisms and reported to Audit Committee, were noted.

	

	UHB 21/11/022
	Ombudsman Annual Report /Letter
 
The Ombudsman Annual Report /Letter was received. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The findings of the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter and the actions being taken were noted.

	

	UHB 21/11/023
	Corporate Risk Register

The Corporate Risk Register was received. 

The DCG advised the Board that there were 20 risks on the Register, 10 were unchanged from last time, 3 had reduced scores, and there were 7 new entries.

It was noted that the Register would only usually hold risks scored at 20 and above, although the DCG advised the Board that, in order to provide oversight, there were 4 risks recorded on the Register with a score of 15.

The IMTS asked if it would be helpful to cluster the risks to give an idea of whether there was something underlying within the risks. 

The DCG responded that she would consider the same and noted that the Risk Register was transitioning constantly to see how it could be improved with the relevant information being brought to Board Members.

The Board resolved that:

a) The Corporate Risk Register and the work which was now progressing was noted.

	


















NF

	UHB 21/11/024
	IMTP 2022/23 – Commissioning Intentions

The IMTP 2022/23 – Commissioning Intentions were received.

The EDSP advised the Board that the Health Board was well underway in terms of the production of the Integrated Medium Term Plan (IMTP).

It was noted that it was the first time in two years that Health Board had moved back to a 3 year planning timetable that required a full IMTP that covered 2022/23 to 2024/25.
It was noted that the Health Board had 2 primary responsibilities which were:

· Improvement of the population’s health
· Being a provider of health services to the population 

It was noted that in order to guide the content of the IMTP, a comprehensive set of commissioning intentions were provided and the same had looked at what needed to be delivered over the next year. 

It was noted that the IMTP document would reflect the Health Board’s strategic objectives in the Shaping Our Future Well-being Strategy.

The Board resolved that:

a) The proposed Commissioning Intentions for 2022/25 as part of the commissioning cycle and to inform the development of the IMTP, were noted.

b) The progress with the development of the IMTP and the process for completion and approval before submission to Welsh Government was noted.  

	

	UHB 21/11/025
	Committee / Governance Group Minutes: 

Audit & Assurance Committee – 7th September 2021
Finance Committee –  29th September 2021
Strategy and Delivery Committee – 14th September 2021
Health & Safety Committee – 27th July 2021
Mental Health Capacity Legislation – 20th July 2021
Charitable Funds Committee – 29th June 2021
Digital Health & Intelligence Committee – 1st June 2021
Shaping Our Future Hospital Committee – 21st July 2021
Stakeholder Reference Group – 22nd July 2021
Emergency Ambulance Services Committee – 7th September 2021
Local Partnership Forum – 18th August 2021
WHSSC Joint Committee Briefings – 7th September 2021

The Board resolved that:

a) The minutes outlined within the meeting were ratified.

	

	UHB 21/11/026
	Chair’s Reports: 

Finance Committee – 27th October 2021 
Audit & Assurance Committee – 9th November 2021
Quality Safety & Experience – 16th September 2021
Strategy & Delivery Committee – 16th November 2021
Health & Safety Committee – 12th October 2021 
Mental Health Capacity Legislation – 19th October 2021
Charitable Funds Committee – 21st September
Digital Health Intelligence Committee – 5th October 2021
Stakeholder Reference Group – 29th September 2021
Emergency Ambulance Services Committee
Local Partnership Forum – 22nd October 2021
WHSSC Joint Committee – November 2021
NWSSPC Assurance Report – 23 September 2021
Finance

The Board resolved that:

a) The Committee Chair reports outlined within the meeting were noted.

	

	UHB 21/11/027
	Review of meeting 

The UHB Chair asked if attendees were satisfied with the business discussions and the format of the meeting, and all Members indicated that they were happy with the meeting, the updates provided and the meeting format.

	

	UHB 21/11/028
	Date and Time of Next Meeting:

27 January 2021 Via MS Teams
	




15

